

**COMHAIRLE CATHRACH CHORCAÍ  
HALLA NA CATHRACH  
CORCAIGH**



**CORK CITY COUNCIL  
CITY HALL  
CORK**

Bíodh a fhios agat go dtionólfar cruinniú de Chomhairle Cathrach Chorcaí ar an dáta thíosluaite, ar a **5.30 A CHLOG I.N., I I HALLA NA CEOLCHOIRME, HALLA NA CATHRACH, CORCAIGH** chun na gnóthaí seo a leanas a dhéanamh:-

Take notice that a Meeting of Cork City Council will be held on the undermentioned date, at the hour of **5.30 P.M. IN THE CONCERT HALL, CITY HALL, CORK** for the transaction of the following business:-

**GNÁTHCHRUINNIÚ – DÉ LUAIN, 12<sup>ú</sup> DEIREADH FÓMHAIR 2020**

**ORDINARY MEETING – MONDAY, 12<sup>th</sup> OCTOBER 2020**

1. **LORD MAYOR'S ITEMS**

To consider any item the Lord Mayor may wish to raise.

2. **CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S ITEMS**

To consider any item the Chief Executive may wish to raise.

3. **MINUTES**

To consider, and if so decided to approve as correct record and sign Minutes of:-

- Ordinary Meeting of An Chomhairle held, 14<sup>th</sup> September 2020.
- Ordinary Meeting of An Chomhairle held, 25<sup>th</sup> September 2020.

4. **QUESTION TIME**

Questions submitted enclosed.

5. **STATUTORY ITEMS**

5.1 **DISPOSALS**

An Chomhairle to consider the reports of the Chief Executive dated, 1<sup>st</sup> October 2020 on the following property disposals:-

- (a) Disposal of the freehold interest in the property situated at “Clifdon House”, Clifton Road, Montenotte, Cork to Kenneth & Sabina Nagle, c/o Patrick Buckley & Co., Solicitors, 5/6 Washington Street West, Cork for the sum of €50.80 together with costs in the sum of €550.00 plus VAT.
- (b) Disposal of Stall No’s 1 & 2, Princes Street Market, Cork, Cork, by way of lease to “My Goodness Ltd” c/o De Búrca Solicitors, 16 South Bank, Crosses Green, Cork, for a period of 4 years and 9 months subject to a rent of €4,294.28 per annum.
- (c) Disposal of No. 94, Harbour View Road, Knocknaheeny, Cork to Monica Butler, c/o Patrick Buckley & Co. Solicitors, 6, Washington Street West, Cork by way of exchange for the property owned by the said Monica Butler at No. 4, Knocknaheeny Avenue, Knocknaheeny, Cork.

## 5.2 **CAPITAL ASSISTANCE SCHEME**

### 5.2.1 **CAPITAL ASSISTANCE SCHEME: 191, AN CAISLEAN VIEW, BALLINCOLLIG, CORK – CIRCLE VOLUNTARY HOUSING ASSOCIATION CLG**

An Chomhairle to consider the report of the Acting Director of Services, Housing dated 24<sup>th</sup> September, 2020 in relation to a loan facility for Circle Voluntary Housing Association CLG in respect of the provision of one, 3 bed unit of accommodation at 191, An Caislean View, Ballincollig, Cork and if so decided to adopt the following resolution:-

“Resolved that, pursuant to the provision of Section 6 of the Housing (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act, 1992, a loan facility not exceeding €276,255 (previously €264,000) be granted to Circle Voluntary Housing Association CLG, subject to the terms of the Capital Assistance Scheme for the provision of one 3 bed unit of accommodation at 191 An Caislean View, Ballincollig, Cork”.

### 5.2.2 **CAPITAL ASSISTANCE SCHEME: 75, TIFFANY DOWNS, BISHOPSTOWN, CORK – CIRCLE VOLUNTARY HOUSING ASSOCIATION CLG**

An Chomhairle to consider the report of the Acting Director of Services, Housing dated 24<sup>th</sup> September, 2020 in relation to a loan facility for Circle Voluntary Housing Association CLG in respect of the provision of one three bed unit of accommodation at 75, Tiffany Downs, Bishopstown, Cork and if so decided to adopt the following resolution:-

“Resolved that, pursuant to the provision of Section 6 of the Housing (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act, 1992, a loan facility not exceeding €319,963 (previously €297,275) be granted to Circle Voluntary Housing Association CLG, subject to the terms of the Capital Assistance Scheme for the provision of one three bed unit of accommodation at 75, Tiffany Downs, Bishopstown Cork”.

5.2.3 **CAPITAL ASSISTANCE SCHEME: 2, ABBOTSWOOD MEWS, MONASTERY ROAD, ROCHESTOWN, CORK – CIRCLE VOLUNTARY HOUSING CLG**

An Chomhairle to consider the report of the Acting Director of Services, Housing dated 24<sup>th</sup> September, 2020 in relation to a loan facility for Circle Voluntary Housing Association CLG in respect of the provision of 1, three bed unit of accommodation at 2, Abbotswood Mews, Monastery Road, Rochestown, Cork and if so decided to adopt the following resolution:-

“Resolved that, pursuant to the provision of Section 6 of the Housing (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act, 1992, a loan facility not exceeding €305,515 (previously €296,700) be granted to Circle Voluntary Housing Association CLG, subject to the terms of the Capital Assistance Scheme for the provision of 1, three bed unit of accommodation at 2, Abbotswood Mews, Monastery Road, Rochestown, Cork”.

5.2.4 **CAPITAL ASSISTANCE SCHEME: 7, CLONLEA, MOUNT OVAL VILLAGE, ROCHESTOWN, CORK – FOCUS HOUSING ASSOCIATION CLG**

An Chomhairle to consider the report of the Acting Director of Services, Housing dated 24<sup>th</sup> September, 2020 in relation to a loan facility for Focus Housing Association CLG in respect of the provision of 1, one bed apartment at 7, Clonlea, Mount Oval Village, Rochestown, Cork and if so decided to adopt the following resolution:-

“Resolved that, pursuant to the provision of Section 6 of the Housing (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act, 1992, a loan facility not exceeding €219,995 be granted to Focus Housing Association CLG, subject to the terms of the Capital Assistance Scheme for the provision of 1, one bed apartment at 7, Clonlea, Mount Oval Village, Rochestown, Cork”.

5.2.5 **CAPITAL ASSISTANCE SCHEME: 8 ANGLESEA MEWS, ANGLESEA STREET, CORK – CIRCLE VOLUNTARY HOUSING ASSOCIATION CLG**

An Chomhairle to consider the report of the Acting Director of Services, Housing dated 24<sup>th</sup> September, 2020 in relation to a loan facility for Circle Voluntary Housing Association CLG in respect of the provision of 1, four bed unit of accommodation at 8 Anglesea Mews, Anglesea Street, Cork and if so decided to adopt the following resolution:-

“Resolved that, pursuant to the provision of Section 6 of the Housing (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act, 1992, a loan facility not exceeding €338,544 (previously €325,000) be granted to Circle Voluntary Housing Association CLG, subject to the terms of the Capital Assistance Scheme for the provision of 1, four bed unit of accommodation at 8 Anglesea Mews, Anglesea Street, Cork”.

5.2.6 **CAPITAL ASSISTANCE SCHEME: APARTMENT 7 BLOCK B, SOUTH TERRACE COURT, SOUTH TERRACE, CORK – FOCUS HOUSING ASSOCIATION CLG**

An Chomhairle to consider the report of the Acting Director of Services, Housing dated 24<sup>th</sup> September, 2020 in relation to a loan facility for Focus Housing Association CLG in respect of the provision of 1, one bed unit at Apartment 7 Block B, South Terrace Court, South Terrace, Cork and if so decided to adopt the following resolution:-

“Resolved that, pursuant to the provision of Section 6 of the Housing (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act, 1992, a loan facility not exceeding €189,865 be granted to Focus Housing Association CLG, subject to the terms of the Capital Assistance Scheme for the provision of 1, one bed unit at Apartment 7 Block B, South Terrace Court, South Terrace, Cork”.

5.2.7 **CAPITAL ASSISTANCE SCHEME: 7 IVY CRESCENT, SOUTH DOUGLAS ROAD, CORK – CIRCLE VOLUNTARY HOUSING ASSOCIATION CLG**

An Chomhairle to consider the report of the Acting Director of Services, Housing dated 24<sup>th</sup> September, 2020 in relation to a loan facility for Circle Voluntary Housing Association CLG in respect of the provision of 1, three bed unit of accommodation at 7 Ivy Crescent, South Douglas Road, Cork and if so decided to adopt the following resolution:-

“Resolved that, pursuant to the provision of Section 6 of the Housing (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act, 1992, a loan facility not exceeding €337,091 (previously €326,225) be granted to Circle Voluntary Housing Association CLG, subject to the terms of the Capital Assistance Scheme for the provision of 1, three bed unit of accommodation at 7 Ivy Crescent, South Douglas Road, Cork”.

5.2.8 **CAPITAL ASSISTANCE SCHEME: 13 THE MOORINGS, MILLERD STREET, CORK – FOCUS HOUSING ASSOCIATION CLG**

An Chomhairle to consider the report of the Acting Director of Services, Housing dated 24<sup>th</sup> September, 2020 in relation to a loan facility for Focus Housing Association CLG in respect of the provision of 1, one bed unit at 13 The Moorings, Millerd Street, Cork and if so decided to adopt the following resolution:-

“Resolved that, pursuant to the provision of Section 6 of the Housing (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act, 1992, a loan facility not exceeding €148,465 be granted to Focus Housing Association CLG, subject to the terms of the Capital Assistance Scheme for the provision of 1, one bed unit at 13 The Moorings, Millerd Street, Cork”.

5.3 **PART 8 PLANNING PROPOSAL MACCURTAIN STREET PUBLIC TRANSPORT IMPROVEMENT SCHEME**

In accordance with the provision of Section 179 (4) (a) of Planning and Development Act 2000 (as amended), An Chomhairle to consider the proposed MacCurtain Street Public Transport Improvement Scheme and the attached report of

the Director of Infrastructure Development thereon, as required under Section 179 (3) of the Planning and Development Act, 2000 (as amended) and, if so decided to adopt the following Resolution:-

“Now Council hereby RESOLVE THAT having considered the proposed development viz. the MacCurtain Street Public Transport Improvement Scheme and the report of the Director of Services, Infrastructure Development Directorate, Cork City Council thereon, it is hereby resolved pursuant to the provisions of Section 179 (4) of the Planning and Development Act, 2000, as amended, that the MacCurtain Street Public Transport Improvement Scheme be carried out as recommended in the said report of the Director of Services, Infrastructure Development Directorate, Cork City Council, which was put before Council on the 12<sup>th</sup> October 2020.”

5.4 **PROPOSED ROAD SAFETY IMPROVEMENT SCHEME AT BLACKROCK ROAD/PARK AVENUE**

An Chomhairle to consider the report of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations Directorate, dated 24<sup>th</sup> September 2020, following public consultation, on the proposed Road Safety Improvement Scheme at Blackrock Road/Park Avenue, pursuant to the requirements of Section 179 of the Planning and Development Act 2000 (as amended) and of Part 8 of the Planning and Development Regulations 2001 (S.I. No. 600/2001) (as amended) and if so decided to adopt the following resolution:-

“In the matter of the proposed Road Safety Improvement Scheme at Blackrock Road/Park Avenue, having given notice to the elected Members of Cork City Council and the public and having complied with the requirements of Sections 179 of the Planning and Development Act 2000 (as amended) and of Part 8 of the Planning and Development Regulations 2001 (S.I. No. 600/2001) (as amended) and having considered the proposed development and the Chief Executive report as prepared by the Director of Services, Roads and Environment Operations Directorate, dated the 24<sup>th</sup> day of September 2020, it is hereby resolved under section 179(4)(b) of the Planning and Development Act, 2000 (as amended by Section 6 of the Planning and Development (Amendment) Act 2018) that the proposed development may be carried out as recommended in the said report. This is in accordance with the recommendation for approval made by the South East Local Area Committee at its meeting on the 28<sup>th</sup> day of September 2020.”

5.5 **PROPOSED ROAD SAFETY IMPROVEMENT SCHEME AT LINDEN AVENUE, UPPER BEAUMONT DRIVE**

An Chomhairle to consider and approve the recommendation of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations Directorate, dated 21<sup>st</sup> September 2020, following public consultation, on the proposed Road Safety Improvement Scheme at Linden Avenue, Upper Beaumont Drive pursuant to Section 38 of the Road Traffic Act 1994, as amended by Section 46 of the Public Transport Regulation Act 2009.

5.6 **PROPOSED ROAD SAFETY IMPROVEMENT SCHEME AT ASSUMPTION ROAD, BLACKPOOL**

An Chomhairle to consider and approve the recommendation of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations Directorate, dated 21<sup>st</sup> September 2020, following public consultation, together with the amendment below, on the proposed Road Safety Improvement Scheme at Assumption Road, Blackpool pursuant to Section 38 of the Road Traffic Act 1994, as amended by Section 46 of the Public Transport Regulation Act 2009.

*In accordance with the Traffic Management Guidelines, speed ramps should only be chosen if no other suitable traffic calming measures can be used. Advanced warning signage, road markings, and high friction surfacing have been included as part of this scheme to warn vehicles in advance that they are approaching a pedestrian crossing. As a result of a request from the Members to include a speed ramp a review of the scheme was undertaken. Following this review the design consultant feels it is appropriate to include a ramp in the scheme at a suitable location recommended by the consultant given the specific characteristics of the location i.e. gradient, radii etc.*

5.7 **PROPOSED RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT AT POULAVONE, CORK**

In accordance with Section 179(4)(a) of the Planning and Development Act 2000, An Chomhairle to consider the proposed residential development at Poulavone, in the City of Cork and the report of the Chief Executive thereon as required under Section 179(3) of the Planning and Development Act, 2000 (as amended) dated 25<sup>th</sup> September 2020.

5.8 **PROPOSED RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT AT DENROCHES CROSS, CORK**

In accordance with Section 179(4)(a) of the Planning and Development Act 2000, An Chomhairle to consider the proposed residential development at Denroches Cross, in the City of Cork and the report of the Chief Executive thereon as required under Section 179(3) of the Planning and Development Act, 2000 (as amended) dated 25<sup>th</sup> September 2020.

6. **ITEMS DEFERRED FROM THE ORDINARY MEETING OF AN CHOMHAIRLE HELD, 14<sup>th</sup> SEPTEMBER 2020**

6.1 **CORPORATE POLICY GROUP – 7<sup>th</sup> SEPTEMBER 2020**

6.1.1 **MOTIONS**

6.1.1.1 **COMMEMORATE PEDESTRIANISATION OF PRINCES STREET**

‘That with the impending 50th anniversary of the pedestrianisation of the Patrick’s Street end of Princes Street, the first pedestrianisation of any such street in Ireland,

this Council consider suitable ways to commemorate this event while also committing to further pedestrianisation of the City Centre.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Boyle 20/237)

### **Decision of Group**

It was agreed for the motion to be put forward to An Chomhairle for consideration.

## **6.2 ENVIRONMENT, WATER AND AMENITY STRATEGIC POLICY COMMITTEE – 27<sup>th</sup> JULY 2020**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the Environment, Water and Amenity Strategic Policy Committee, and if so decided to approve the following recommendations from its meeting held, 27<sup>th</sup> July 2020.

### **6.2.1 MOTIONS**

#### **6.2.1.1 ANNUAL SPRAYING OF GLYPHOSATE WEEDKILLER**

Members considered the report of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations, dated 21<sup>st</sup> July 2020 on the following motion:-

‘Following on from my 2017 Motion 17/081, I call on Cork City Council to not to proceed with the annual spraying of Glyphosate based weedkiller on civic amenities such as footpaths, parks, sports grounds and public walkways. In light of the Council’s signing up to the National Biodiversity Plan, I propose that the indiscriminate use of Glyphosate on our city’s pollinators and natural plant life is not in accordance with our stated interest in promoting biodiversity, and should be discontinued.

In addition, recent studies have brought into question the safety of Glyphosate in relation to human health.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Tynan 20/143)

### **Decision of Committee**

It was agreed to accept the report of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations dated 21<sup>st</sup> July, 2020 and recommend it to An Chomhairle for approval.

#### **6.2.1.2 TREE FELLING LICENCE SYSTEM**

Members considered the report of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations, dated 21<sup>st</sup> July 2020 on the following motion:-

‘Given the need to increase the number of trees in the city, a tree felling licence system be introduced in urban areas (similar to that existing in rural areas) in order to ensure existing trees are not randomly destroyed.’

(Proposer: Cllr. M. Finn 20/160)

#### **Decision of Committee**

It was agreed to accept the report of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations dated 21<sup>st</sup> July, 2020 and recommend it to An Chomhairle for approval.

#### **6.2.1.3 ASSESS ALL PARKS AND WALKWAYS**

Members considered the report of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations, dated 21<sup>st</sup> July 2020 on the following motion:-

‘That Cork City Council will assess all parks and walkways for more park access points and for hours to be managed for mobility of workers who require these facilities outside currently existing park hours. Once this assessment is completed Cork City Council will publish a report on mobility strategy and permeability through publicly owned land.’

(Proposer: Cllr. L. Bogue 19/496)

#### **Decision of Committee**

It was agreed to accept the report of the Director of Service, Roads & Environment Operations dated 14<sup>th</sup> July, 2020 and recommend it to An Chomhairle for approval.

#### **6.2.1.4 DESIGNATED AREA FOR DOG WALKERS**

Members considered the report of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations, dated 21<sup>st</sup> July 2020 on the following motion:-

‘That Cork City Council identify and designate an area for dog walkers within the city where they can leave their dogs off lead but still be in an enclosed safe area.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Moloney 20/200)

#### **Decision of Committee.**

It was agreed to accept the report of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations dated 21<sup>st</sup> July, 2020 and recommend it to An Chomhairle for approval.

#### **6.2.1.5 ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION IN GLEN RIVER VALLEY**

Members considered the report of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations, dated 21<sup>st</sup> July 2020 on the following motion:-



‘I call on Cork City Council to implement a policy of environmental protection in relation to the Glen River Valley, and to designate this entire region (stretching from Banduff on the eastern high ground between Mayfield and Ballyvolane to the Glen Park) as an area of high ecological importance. This should be part of the Council's commitment to protecting local biodiversity and sustainable development.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Tynan 20/210)

**Decision of Committee.**

It was agreed to accept the report of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations dated 21<sup>st</sup> July, 2020 and recommend it to An Chomhairle for approval.

6.2.1.6 **ECO-GRAVEYARD IN THE CITY**

Members considered the report of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations, dated 21<sup>st</sup> July 2020 on the following motion:-

‘That Cork City Council will report on the possibility of supporting an eco-graveyard in the city, either as a standalone cemetery or within an existing cemetery, where burial occurs without chemicals and unnecessary markings, and where the graveyard itself supports biodiversity through the planting of trees on burial sites.’

(Proposer: Cllr. O. Moran 20/235)

**Decision of Committee.**

It was agreed to accept the report of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations dated 21<sup>st</sup> July, 2020 and recommend it to An Chomhairle for approval.

6.3 **STRATEGIC, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & PLANNING STRATEGIC POLICY COMMITTEE – 7<sup>th</sup> SEPTEMBER 2020**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the Strategic, Economic Development & Planning Strategic Policy Committee, and if so decided to approve the following recommendations from its meeting held, 7<sup>th</sup> September 2020.

6.3.1 **BUSINESS SUPPORT DURING COVID 19**

The Director outlined the current numbers and supports available.

**Decision of Committee**

The Committee welcomed the report and agreed to refer to An Chomhairle for information.

6.3.2 **CORK CITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN**

The Director outlined the current progress and future stages of the Cork City Development plan.

### **Decision of Committee**

The Committee welcomed the report and agreed to refer to An Chomhairle for information.

#### 6.4 **FINANCE AND ESTIMATES COMMITTEE – 13<sup>th</sup> JULY 2020**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the Finance and Estimates Committee, and if so decided to approve the following recommendations from its meeting held, 13<sup>th</sup> July 2020.

##### 6.4.1 **FINANCE RELATED REPORTS**

###### 6.4.1.1 **FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO END OF MAY 2020**

Members considered the Financial Statements to end of May 2020.

### **Decision of Committee**

It was agreed to note the Financial Statements and refer to An Chomhairle for approval.

##### 6.4.2 **MOTIONS**

Members considered the following motions referred to the Committee:-

###### 6.4.2.1 **€140,000 SAVINGS FROM THE USE OF ELECTRIC VEHICLES**

‘That Cork City Council put the 140,000 euro savings per annum into estate road resurfacing.’

(Proposer: Cllr. S. Martin 20/152)

### **Decision of Committee**

Following an update from the Chief Financial Officer, Members agreed that the motion would not be referred to An Chomhairle for approval.

##### 6.5 **CORRESPONDENCE**

An Chomhairle to note correspondence, if any.

##### 6.6 **CONFERENCE/SEMINAR SUMMARIES**

An Chomhairle to note summaries by Members of Conferences/Seminars attended, if any.

6.7 **CONFERENCES/SEMINARS**

An Chomhairle to approve attendance at Conferences/Seminars tabled on the night, if any.

6.7.1 **31<sup>st</sup> COLMCILLE WINTER SCHOOL 2020**

An Chomhairle to retrospectively approve the attendance of Comhairleoir F. Dennehy at the 31<sup>st</sup> Colmcille Winter School 2020 “The Contribution of Irish Christianity to Irish, European and World Civilisation” held at the Colmcille Heritage Centre, Gartan, Letterkenny, Co. Donegal from 28<sup>th</sup> – 29<sup>th</sup> February 2020.

6.8 **TRAINING**

An Chomhairle to approve attendance at training tabled on the night, if any.

6.9 **CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S MONTHLY MANAGEMENT REPORT**

An Chomhairle to note the Chief Executive’s Monthly Management Report for May 2020.

6.10 **MOTIONS REFERRED TO COMMITTEES**

An Chomhairle to note the motions on Appendix 1 attached, that have been referred to the relevant Committees as determined by the Meetings Administrator, due notice of which has been given.

6.11 **MOTIONS**

6.11.1 **ONLINE JAZZ FESTIVAL**

‘That Cork City Council write to Guinness/Diageo proposing that they task the Cork Jazz Festival Committee with organising an online Jazz Festival for the bank holiday October weekend that would in some way benefit the musicians and performers that would take part.’

(Proposer: Cllr. M. Nugent 20/245)

6.11.2 **REPORT ON REFORM OF THE FAMILY LAW SYSTEM**

‘That Cork City Council call upon the Minister for Health, the Minister for Justice and Equality, and the Minister for Children to implement recommendation 36 of the Houses of the Oireachtas Joint Committee on Justice and Equality’s October 2019 report on Reform of the Family Law System. Recommendation 36 is as follows: “The Committee recommends that consideration be given as to whether laws should be amended to take into account situations where one parent is wrongfully influencing their child or children against the other parent, thereby creating unfair and unwarranted alienation that can be destructive and life lasting.”

(Proposer: Cllr. S. O’Callaghan 20/264)

6.11.3 **WASTE MANAGEMENT SERVICES IN PUBLIC OWNERSHIP**

‘Recognising the failure of the decision to privatise waste management services, I propose that Cork City Council call on the government and Minister for Housing, Local Government and Heritage, Darragh O’Brien, to commence the process to take waste management services back under public ownership and control, using the local government infrastructure such as Cork City Council, and that this is funded from general taxation.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Tynan 20/272)

7. **CORPORATE POLICY GROUP – 21<sup>st</sup> SEPTEMBER 2020**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the Corporate Policy Group from its meeting held, 21<sup>st</sup> September 2020.

8. **CORPORATE POLICY GROUP – 5<sup>th</sup> OCTOBER 2020**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the Corporate Policy Group, and if so decided to approve the following recommendations from its meeting held, 5<sup>th</sup> October 2020.

8.1 **FINANCIAL STATEMENT TO 31<sup>st</sup> AUGUST 2020**

J. Hallahan presented the Financial Statement to 31<sup>st</sup> August 2020.

**Decision of Group**

It was agreed to refer the Financial Statement to 31<sup>st</sup> August 2020 to An Chomhairle for consideration.

8.2 **CORK CITY COUNCIL’S BANK OVERDRAFT FACILITY Y/E DECEMBER 2021**

Members considered the report of the Head of Finance, dated 1<sup>st</sup> October 2020, on the Bank Overdraft Facility Y/E December 2021.

**Decision of the Group**

Members considered the report and agreed to recommend the approval of the overdraft and the adoption of the following resolution to An Chomhairle:-

*“That Cork City Council approves, pursuant to Section 106 of the Local Government Act, 2001, an overdraft facility of €25m (twenty five million euro) for the twelve month period to 31<sup>st</sup> December 2021”.*

9. **PARTY WHIPS – 28<sup>th</sup> SEPTEMBER 2020**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the Party Whips, and if so decided to approve the following recommendations from its meeting held, 28<sup>th</sup> September 2020.

9.1 **STREET OR PLACE NAME FOR FREDERICK DOUGLASS**

‘Given that the 175th anniversary of the visit of Frederick Douglass to Cork is on October 11<sup>th</sup>, that Cork City Council will investigate marking the occasion by naming a street or place for Frederick Douglass.’

(Proposer: Cllr. L. Bogue 20/253)

Following consideration, Party Whips agreed to refer this motion to An Chomhairle with a recommendation of referral to the Operations (Roads & Environment Directorate).

**Decision of Party Whips**

Members agreed to refer this item to An Chomhairle for consideration.

9.2 **ANY OTHER BUSINESS**

9.2.1 **SPECIAL MEETING OF CLIMATE ACTION COMMITTEE MEETING**

Comhairleoir O. Moran informed members it is proposed to hold a special online public meeting of the Climate Action Committee on Friday, 16 October 2020.

Members noted that a Suspension of Standing Orders is required to hold this meeting.

**Decision of Party Whips**

Members agreed to refer this item to An Chomhairle for consideration.

10. **ENVIRONMENT, WATER & AMENITY STRATEGIC POLICY COMMITTEE – 21<sup>st</sup> SEPTEMBER 2020**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the Environment, Water & Amenity Strategic Policy Committee, and if so decided to approve the following recommendations from its meeting held, 21<sup>st</sup> September 2020.

10.1 **MOTIONS**

10.1.1 **POLICY TO SUPPLY SKIP BAGS**

Members considered the report of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations, dated 11<sup>th</sup> September 2020 on the following motion referred to the Committee:-

‘That Cork City Council Litter Department implement a policy with existing companies that supply skipo bags to shops and all local suppliers. Names and addresses should be taken when sold to the public so that if illegal dumping of these bats take place the person or persons can be identified’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. Collins 20/175)

**Decision of Committee**

It was agreed to accept the report of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations dated 11<sup>th</sup> September, 2020 and recommend it to An Chomhairle for approval.

10.1.2 **INSTALL CCTV IN ALL CEMETERIES**

Members considered the report of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations, dated 11<sup>th</sup> September 2020 on the following motion referred to the Committee:-

‘That Cork City Council install CCTV in all cemeteries in the city.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. O’Flynn 19/451)

**Decision of Committee**

It was agreed to accept the report of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations dated 11<sup>th</sup> September, 2020 and recommend it to An Chomhairle for approval.

10.1.3 **CHECKS FOR PROOF OF REFUSE DISPOSAL**

Members considered the report of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations, dated 11<sup>th</sup> September 2020 on the following motion referred to the Committee:-

‘In light of the level of illegal dumping across the city and the passing of new laws in relation to households having to prove they are disposing of their rubbish legally, Cork City Council should now put in place a management system to carry out checks across the city. Proof of refuse collections in all areas possibly starting where illegal dumping is most prevalent can be done by reassigning staff, employing new staff or a suitable alternative being put in place by Cork City Council.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Moloney 20/206)

**Decision of Committee**

It was agreed to accept the report of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations dated 11<sup>th</sup> September, 2020 and recommend it to An Chomhairle for approval.

#### 10.1.4 **PILOT PROJECT FOR DOG WALKING AREA**

Members considered the report of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations, dated 11<sup>th</sup> September 2020 on the following motion referred to the Committee:-

‘That City Council would consider putting in place a pilot project for a dog walking area (without a leash) in one of our parks that would be big enough to facilitate this. Tramore Valley and the loop at the eastern end of the walkway at Ballincollig park have being suggested by several constituents for this pilot project.’

(Proposer: Cllr. H. Cremin 20/211)

##### **Decision of Committee**

It was agreed to accept the report of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations dated 11<sup>th</sup> September, 2020 and recommend it to An Chomhairle for approval.

#### 10.1.5 **JAPANESE KNOTWEED ACROSS THE CITY**

Members considered the report of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations, dated 11<sup>th</sup> September 2020 on the following motion referred to the Committee:-

‘That City Council give an updated report on the measures taken in relation to the tackling of the ongoing issues with Japanese knotweed across the City specifically the walkways at Model Farm Rd./Carrigrohane Rd. and Mardyke/North Mall.’

(Proposer: Cllr. H. Cremin 20/212)

##### **Decision of Committee**

It was agreed to accept the report of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations dated 11<sup>th</sup> September, 2020 and recommend it to An Chomhairle for approval.

#### 10.1.6 **WASTE COLLECTION HOURS**

Members considered the report of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations, dated 11<sup>th</sup> September 2020 on the following motion referred to the Committee:-

‘That Cork City Council take all necessary steps to ensure that, outside of Cork city centre, waste collections are only permitted to take place between 6.00 am and 9.00 pm on weekdays and between 8.00 am and 8.00 pm at weekends and on bank holidays.’

(Proposer: Cllr. S. O’Callaghan 20/265)

### **Decision of Committee**

It was agreed to accept the report of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations dated 11<sup>th</sup> September, 2020 and recommend it to An Chomhairle for approval.

#### 11. **INTERNATIONAL RELATIONS AND TOURISM STRATEGIC POLICY COMMITTEE – 21<sup>st</sup> SEPTEMBER 2020**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the International Relations & Tourism Strategic Policy Committee, and if so decided to approve the following recommendations from its meeting held, 21<sup>st</sup> September 2020.

##### 11.1 **CORK CITY COUNCIL'S EU ACTIVITIES AND PROJECTS**

Members received a report from the Director of Services, Strategic and Economic Development, on Cork City Council's EU activities and projects.

### **Decision of Committee**

Members agreed to accept the report of the Director of Services, Strategic and Economic Development and refer it to An Chomhairle for consideration.

##### 11.2 **CURRENT ACTIVITIES TO SUPPORT THE TOURISM SECTOR IN CORK**

Members received a report from the Director of Services, Strategic and Economic Development, on current activities to support the tourism sector in Cork in light of the COVID 19 emergency.

### **Decision of Committee**

Members agreed to accept the report of the Director of Services, Strategic and Economic Development and refer it to An Chomhairle for consideration.

#### 12. **COMMUNITY, CULTURE & PLACEMAKING STRATEGIC POLICY COMMITTEE – 21<sup>st</sup> SEPTEMBER 2020**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the Community, Culture & Placemaking Strategic Policy Committee, and if so decided to approve the following recommendations from its meeting held, 21<sup>st</sup> September 2020.

##### 12.1 **NOTICES OF MOTION**

##### 12.1.1 **WATER BOTTLE FILLING STATIONS**

Members considered the report of the Director of Services, Community, Culture & Placemaking dated 7<sup>th</sup> September, 2020 on the following motion referred to the Committee:-



‘That Cork City Council introduce water bottle filling stations on the city centre island and in our public parks and walks ways.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. O’Flynn 19/421)

#### **Decision of Committee**

It was agreed to accept the report of the Director of Community, Culture & Placemaking and recommend it to An Comhairle for information.

#### 12.1.2 **PLACING OF SIGNS BY COMMUNITY GROUPS**

Members considered the report of the Director of Services, Community, Culture & Placemaking dated 21<sup>st</sup> September, 2020 on the following motion referred to the Committee:-

“That Cork City Council will support the placing of signs by community groups and local initiatives, such as the ‘Beasts of the Bride’, highlighting the importance of nature and biodiversity in the city.”

(Proposer: Cllrs. O. Moran 20/234)

#### **Decision of Committee**

It was agreed to accept the report of the Director of Community, Culture & Placemaking and recommend it to An Comhairle for information.

#### 12.1.3 **GREEN SPACE IN HOUSING DEVELOPMENTS**

Members considered the report of the Director of Services, Community, Culture & Placemaking dated 7<sup>th</sup> September, 2020 on the following motion referred to the Committee:-

“That this Council continues to insist on the importance of appropriate amounts of green space to be included with each housing development in its administrative area.”

(Proposer: Cllrs. D. Boyle and C. Finn 20/238)

#### **Decision of Committee**

It was agreed to accept the report of the Director of Community, Culture & Placemaking and recommend it to An Comhairle for information.

#### 12.1.4 **VIRTUAL PLATFORM FOR ARTISTS**

Members considered the report of the Director of Services, Community, Culture & Placemaking dated 7<sup>th</sup> September, 2020 on the following motion referred to the Committee:-

“That with the postponement this year of several significant city festivals, this Council facilitate and where possible resource greater virtual platforms for artists particularly musicians.”

(Proposer: Cllr. C. Finn 20/243)

**Decision of Committee**

It was agreed to accept the report of the Director of Community, Culture & Placemaking and recommend it to An Comhairle for information.

12.1.5 **SUPPORT CORK (CORK RECOVERS) FESTIVAL**

Members considered the report of the Director of Services, Community, Culture & Placemaking dated 7<sup>th</sup> September, 2020 on the following motion referred to the Committee:-

“Given the cancellation of the October Jazz Festival, that Cork City Council initiates moves to have a Support Cork (Cork Recovers) festival instead to support business in the city and provide a welcome social outlet for people.”

(Proposer: Cllr. M. Finn 20/280)

**Decision of Committee**

It was agreed to accept the report of the Director of Community, Culture & Placemaking and recommend it to An Comhairle for information.

12.1.6 **EXTEND OPENING HOURS IN CORK CITY LIBRARY**

Members considered the report of the Director of Services, Community, Culture & Placemaking dated 16<sup>th</sup> September, 2020 on the following motion referred to the Committee:-

‘That Cork City Council investigate extending opening hours of public spaces such as Cork City library for the use of students as study spaces should the need arise due to social distancing measures in third level institutes in Cork City.’

(Proposer: Cllr. L. Bogue 20/301)

**Decision of Committee**

It was agreed to accept the report of the Director of Community, Culture & Placemaking and recommend it to An Comhairle for information.

12.2 **ARTS OFFICE REPORTS**

The Committee noted the Arts Office reports for June and August, 2020.

### **Decision of Committee**

It was agreed to accept the reports of the Arts Officer and recommend them to An Comhairle for information.

13. **NORTH WEST LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE – 28<sup>th</sup> SEPTEMBER 2020**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the North West Local Area Committee from its meeting held, 28<sup>th</sup> September 2020.

14. **NORTH EAST LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE – 28<sup>th</sup> SEPTEMBER 2020**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the North East Local Area Committee from its meeting held, 28<sup>th</sup> September 2020.

15. **SOUTH CENTRAL LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE – 28<sup>th</sup> SEPTEMBER 2020**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the South Central Local Area Committee from its meeting held, 28<sup>th</sup> September 2020.

16. **SOUTH WEST LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE – 28<sup>th</sup> SEPTEMBER 2020**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the South West Local Area Committee from its meeting held, 28<sup>th</sup> September 2020.

16.1 **JUNCTION OF TOGHER ROAD, CLASHDUV ROAD & VICARS ROAD**

Members considered the report of the Director of Services, Infrastructure Development Directorate dated 28<sup>th</sup> September, 2020 on the following motion referred to the Committee by An Chomhairle:

‘Now that the new housing estate is completed on the Deanrock site, the junction at Togher Road, Clashduv Road and Vicars Road needs to be addressed immediately. Councillors were told that full and detailed plans will be put in place for the whole of Togher Road on completion of these houses. A filter light turning right from Clashduv Road onto Togher Road needs to be done as a matter of priority. Cllr. Henry Cremin has also requested that a pedestrian crossing/zebra crossing be placed close to the bus stops allowing people to cross safely at this point accessing the housing est., credit union etc.’

(Proposers: Cllr. T. Moloney, Cllr. H. Cremin 20/204)

### **Decision of Committee**

On the proposal of Comhairleoir T. Moloney, seconded by Comhairleoir F. Dennehy the Committee agreed to accept the report and refer it to An Chomhairle for consideration.

17. **SOUTH EAST LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE – 28<sup>th</sup> SEPTEMBER 2020**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the South East Local Area Committee from its meeting held, 28<sup>th</sup> September 2020.

18. **FINANCE & ESTIMATES COMMITTEE – 7<sup>th</sup> SEPTEMBER 2020**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the Finance and Estimates Committee from its meeting held, 7<sup>th</sup> September 2020.

19. **FINANCE & ESTIMATES COMMITTEE – 5<sup>th</sup> OCTOBER 2020**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the Finance and Estimates Committee, and if so decided to approve the following recommendations from its meeting held, 5<sup>th</sup> October 2020.

19.1 **FINANCE RELATED REPORTS**

19.1.1 **FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO END OF AUGUST 2020**

Members considered the financial statements to end of August 2020.

**Decision of Committee**

It was agreed to note the Financial Statements and refer to An Chomhairle for approval.

20. **CLIMATE ACTION COMMITTEE – 14<sup>th</sup> SEPTEMBER 2020**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the Climate Action Committee from its meeting held, 14<sup>th</sup> September 2020.

21. **CORRESPONDENCE**

An Chomhairle to note correspondence, if any.

22. **CONFERENCE/SEMINAR SUMMARIES**

An Chomhairle to note summaries by Members of Conferences/Seminars attended, if any.

23. **CONFERENCES/SEMINARS**

An Chomhairle to approve attendance at Conferences/Seminars tabled on the night, if any.

24. **TRAINING**

An Chomhairle to approve attendance at training tabled on the night, if any.

25. **CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S MONTHLY MANAGEMENT REPORT**

An Chomhairle to note the Chief Executive's Monthly Management Report for August 2020.

26. **MOTIONS REFERRED TO COMMITTEES**

An Chomhairle to note the motions on Appendix 2 attached, that have been referred to the relevant Committees as determined by the Meetings Administrator, due notice of which has been given.

27. **MOTIONS**

27.1 **PENSION ENTITLEMENT TO SUPERVISORS ON COMMUNITY EMPLOYMENT SCHEMES**

'That Cork City Council, calls on the Government to deliver on a 2008 Labour Court ruling to provide pension entitlement to supervisors on Community Employment schemes in the state. The Governments inaction on the 2008 decision is totally undermining the Labour Court and causing undue hardship to supervisors that made no alternative arrangements on foot of this historical Court decision.'

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Moloney 20/255)

27.2 **FUNDING FOR STATUES OF TOMÁS MACCURTAIN, TERENCE MACSWINEY AND MICHAEL COLLINS ON PATRICK STREET**

'That Cork City Council call upon the Government, in particular the Taoiseach, the Minister for Public Expenditure and Reform and the Minister for Culture, Heritage and the Gaeltacht, to provide national funding for the erection of monuments and statues of Tomás Mac Curtain, Terence MacSwiney and Michael Collins on Patrick Street and its environs to commemorate Cork's contribution to the struggle for Irish independence and to the establishment of an independent Irish State. The monuments and statues should be of a similar size and design as the monument and statue of Father Matthew, which is currently on Patrick Street.'

(Proposer: Cllr. S. O'Callaghan 20/323)

27.3 **ENGAGEMENT WITH TAXI REPRESENTATIVES**

'Cork City Council calls on the government to have meaningful engagement with taxi driver representatives and introduce the necessary reforms to give taxi drivers a break and to keep our taxis on the road. These would include a pause on the issuing of new licences until normal levels of economic activity return, reform of the Taxi Advisory Committee, continued access to bus lanes and a temporary two-year extension to the rule that requires taxis to be less than ten years old. Taxis provide an

essential service in our transport network, many people with disabilities rely on taxis daily and taxi drivers should be recognised by this government for the contribution they make.’

(Proposer: Cllr. M. Nugent 20/349)

**ALMA MURNANE**  
**MEETINGS ADMINISTRATOR**

Chuíg gach ball de Chomhairle Cathrach Chorcaí.

8<sup>ú</sup> Deireadh Fómhair 2020

# **APPENDIX 1**

## **MOTIONS**

An Chomhairle to note the referral to the relevant Committee of the following motions, due notice of which has been given:-

1. **INSTALL CCTV IN ALL CEMETERIES**

‘That Cork City Council install CCTV it all cemeteries in the city.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. O’Flynn 19/451)

**Environment, Water & Amenity Strategic Policy Committee – 21/09/20**

2. **MAKE TREES SAFE IN GLANMIRE**

‘Could I ask that Cork City Council would make safe the trees in the Hazelwood Drive, Brookville, Oakfield, St. Joseph’s View and Marble Park estates please.’

(Proposer: Cllr. G. Keohane 19/455)

**North East Local Area Committee – 28/09/20**

3. **REPAIR SOLAR SPEED SIGN ON HAZELWOOD ROAD, GLANMIRE**

‘Could I ask Cork City Council please to repair the solar powered speed sign on the main Hazelwood Road near Glanmire Community College (GCC) under health and safety grounds as cars are travelling too fast along this stretch of road.’

(Proposer: Cllr. G. Keohane 19/456)

**North East Local Area Committee – 28/09/20**

4. **PEDESTRIAN CROSSING OUTSIDE GLANMIRE GAA GROUNDS**

‘Could I ask Cork City Council please to install a pedestrian crossing outside the Glanmire GAA grounds (Pike Field) in Sallybrook, under health and safety concerns. Contribution charges from the 3 new houses going to be built across the road from the GAA grounds could perhaps pay for this pedestrian/zebra crossing.’

(Proposer: Cllr. G. Keohane 19/457)

**North East Local Area Committee – 28/09/20**

5. **ZEBRA CROSSING AT GLASABOY WOODS, GLANMIRE**

‘Could I ask Cork City Council to assist the developer of the Glasaboy Woods new housing estate in Sallybrook, Glanmire to install a zebra crossing outside this estate. Developers applied for planning permission when Glanmire was in the county. This application has not progressed and the developer will install himself.’

(Proposer: Cllr. G. Keohane 19/458)

**North East Local Area Committee – 28/09/20**

6. **TRAFFIC CALMING MEASURES AT PARK CLOSE, PARKLANDS**

‘That Cork City Council install traffic calming measures at Park Close, Parklands, Cork.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. O’Flynn 20/046)

**North West Local Area Committee – 28/09/20**

7. **ENGAGEMENT WITH MNÁ FEASA**

‘That Cork City Council engage with Mná Feasa to work to raise awareness and staff training in our Housing Department to help better understanding of relationships, domestic violence where City Council tenants are at risk.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K O’Flynn 20/048)

**Housing Strategic Policy Committee – 19/10/20**

8. **SET DOWN AREA ON GURRANABRAHER ROAD**

‘That a set down area be provided from Donatellos to the post office and service the pharmacy on Gurranaברה Road.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. O’Flynn 20/050)

**North West Local Area Committee – 28/09/20**

9. **ACCESS FROM NEMO RANGERS TO TRAMORE VALLEY PARK**

‘That Cork City Council enter into discussion with Nemo Rangers in relation to access from Nemo to the park (the residents of Green Hills to be kept in the loop).’

(Proposer: Cllr. S. Martin 20/153)

**South Central Local Area Committee – 28/09/20**



10. **UPGRADE THE FOOTPATH AT STATION ROAD, BLARNEY**

‘That Cork City Council upgrade the footpath at Station Road, Blarney as it is a health and safety hazard.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Fitzgerald 20/157)

**North West Local Area Committee – 28/09/20**

11. **SIGNAGE AT TWEEDMOUNT**

‘That Cork City Council erect proper signage at the turn off to Tweedmount.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Fitzgerald 20/158)

**North West Local Area Committee – 28/09/20**

12. **NAME DEVELOPMENT AT GERALD GRIFFIN AVENUE AFTER DONAL O’CALLAGHAN**

‘That Cork City Council name the new development at Gerald Griffin Street, Gerald Griffin Avenue (was Peacock Lane) as it is the site where Lord Mayor 1920, Donal O’Callaghan was born in 1891 at 1 Factory Lane, next to Peacock Lane, off Gerald Griffin Street.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Fitzgerald 20/177)

**Centenary Commemoration 2019-2023 Steering Committee**

13. **JUNCTION AT TOGHER ROAD, CLASHDUV ROAD AND VICARS ROAD**

‘Now that the new housing estate is completed on the Deanrock site, the junction at Togher Road, Clashduv Road and Vicars Road needs to be addressed immediately. Councillors were told that full and detailed plans will be put in place for the whole of Togher Road on completion of these houses. A filter light turning right from Clashduv Road onto Togher Road needs to be done as a matter of priority. Cllr. Henry Cremin has also requested that a pedestrian crossing/zebra crossing be placed close to the bus stops allowing people to cross safely at this point accessing the housing est., credit union etc.’

(Proposers: Cllr. T. Moloney, Cllr. H. Cremin 20/204)

**South West Local Area Committee – 28/09/20**

14. **ADULT EXERCISE EQUIPMENT AT CLASHDUV PARK, MURPHY'S FARM AND THE LOUGH**

'I propose that Cork City Council install adult exercise equipment strategically around Clashdub Park, Murphy's Farm and The Lough. These are areas used by a lot of walking groups, sports clubs and the general public. The placement of adult exercise equipment around these areas would be a great addition.'

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Moloney 20/205)

**South West Local Area Committee – 28/09/20**

15. **CHECKS FOR PROOF OF REFUSE DISPOSAL**

'In light of the level of illegal dumping across the city and the passing of new laws in relation to households having to prove they are disposing of their rubbish legally, Cork City Council should now put in place a management system to carry out checks across the city. Proof of refuse collection in all areas possibly starting where illegal dumping is most prevalent can be done by reassigning staff, employing new staff or a suitable alternative being put in place by Cork City Council.'

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Moloney 20/206)

**Environment & Water Strategic Policy Committee – 21/09/20**

16. **FUNDING FOR SOCCER PITCH AT CLASHDUV PARK**

'That funding be put in place to bring the soccer pitch in Clashdub Park back into full use by the community.'

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Moloney 2/208)

**South West Local Area Committee – 28/09/20**

17. **PILOT PROJECT FOR DOG WALKING AREA**

'That City Council would consider putting in place a pilot project for a dog walking area (without a leash) in one of our parks that would be big enough to facilitate this. Tramore Valley and the loop at the eastern end of the walkway at Ballincollig park have been suggested by several constituents for this pilot project.'

(Proposer: Cllr. H. Cremin 20/211)

**Environment, Water & Amenity Strategic Policy Committee – 21/09/20**

18. **JAPANESE KNOTWEED ACROSS THE CITY**

‘That City Council give an updated report on the measures taken in relation to the tackling of the ongoing issues with Japanese knotweed across the City specifically the walkways at Model Farm Rd./Carrigrohane Rd. and Mardyke/North Mall.’

(Proposer: Cllr. H. Cremin 20/212)

**Environment, Water & Amenity Strategic Policy Committee – 21/09/20**

19. **REPAIR WORKS OF THE WEIR AT BALLINCOLLIG REGIONAL PARK**

‘Can Council give an update on any progress being made in relation to the repair works or replacement of the Weir at Ballincollig regional park.’

(Proposer: Cllr. H. Cremin 20/213)

**South West Local Area Committee – 28/09/20**

20. **DOUBLE YELLOW LINES AT ENTRANCE TO BALTIMORE LAWN**

‘Can we have the double yellow lines at the entrance to Baltimore Lawn extended on the right hand side as you drive in to prevent indiscriminate parking.’

(Proposer: Cllr. S. Martin 20/219)

**South Central Local Area Committee – 28/09/20**

21. **ASSESS COMMONS ROAD FOR TRAFFIC CALMING MEASURES**

‘That Cork City Council assess Commons Road from the junction of Pophams Road to Blackpool Village for traffic calming measures due to the increased volume of traffic and development in the area.’

(Proposer: Cllr. J. Sheehan 20/256)

**North West Local Area Committee – 28/09/20**

22. **GREEN AREA AT MOUNT ST. JOSEPH’S DRIVE**

‘That Cork City Council weed and cut back any growth and clear rubbish at the green area at Mt. St. Joseph’s Drive and make it safe and environmentally friendly.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Fitzgerald 20/257)

**North West Local Area Committee – 28/09/20**

23. **FOOTPATHS AT 20 CLAREVILLE, POULADUFF**

‘That the footpaths outside 20 Clareville, Pouladuff be immediately reinstated.’

(Proposer: Cllr. S. Martin 20/259)

**South Central Local Area Committee – 28/09/20**

24. **DOG WASTE BINS AT TRAMORE ROAD**

‘That this Council install dog waste bins along Tramore Road.’

(Proposer: Cllr. F. Kerins 20/260)

**South Central Local Area Committee – 28/09/20**

25. **TRAFFIC SAFETY MEASURES AT FORGE HILL**

‘That this Council install traffic safety measures at the bottom of Forge Hill as a matter of urgency. The traffic coming down Forge Hill has very limited sight of the traffic approaching from Pouladuff Road side and they are forced to pull out onto the road blindly. This is an extremely busy junction and I have witnessed near misses daily at this junction.’

(Proposer: Cllr. F. Kerins 20/261)

**South Central Local Area Committee – 28/09/20**

26. **TRAFFIC CALMING MEASURES IN LEHENAGHMORE**

‘That given the huge number of houses and new builds in the area (currently without the requisite infrastructure) speed restriction and traffic calming measures are installed for the roadway between Matthew Hill and Coolkellure in Lehenaghmore.’

(Proposer: Cllr. M. Finn 20/263)

**South West Local Area Committee – 28/09/20**

27. **WASTE COLLECTION HOURS**

‘That Cork City Council take all necessary steps to ensure that, outside of Cork city centre, waste collections are only permitted to take place between 6.00 am and 9.00 pm on weekdays and between 8.00 am and 8.00 pm at weekends and on bank holidays.’

(Proposer: Cllr. S. O’Callaghan 20/265)

**Environment, Water & Amenity Strategic Policy Committee – 21/09/20**

28. **LANEAWAY FROM CROAGHTAMORE GARDENS TO GOULD STREET**

‘Following requests from some residents on back of ongoing antisocial behaviour reported to Gardaí, that the possibilities of closing the laneway from Croaghtamore Gardens to Gould St. be closed off or gated or infill housing be looked at.’

(Proposer: Cllr. M. Finn 20/268)

**South Central Local Area Committee – 28/09/20**

29. **DOG WASTE BINS ON GRANGE ROAD**

‘That Cork City Council install two dog waste bins on the Grange Road, one on each side of the Grange Road.’

(Proposer: Cllr. S. O’Callaghan 20/270)

**South Central Local Area Committee – 28/09/20**

30. **ROAD MARKINGS ON THE AIRPORT ROAD**

‘That Cork City Council put down a number of “Slow” and/or “Slow Down” road markings on the part of Airport Road approaching the junction at Frankfield Road/Grange Road.’

(Proposer: Cllr. S. O’Callaghan 20/271)

**South Central Local Area Committee – 28/09/20**

31. **LIST OF ASSETS**

‘Given the present financial situation pertaining to Cork City Council budgets that management bring to the next financial committee meeting a list of Assets/Properties that might be considered for sale or redevelopment with a view to realizing income for the council and badly needed inner city enhancements.’

(Proposer: Cllr. S. Martin 20/273)

**Finance & Estimates Committee – 05/10/20**

32. **PORTION OF GROUND IN MAHON GIVEN TO THE RAINBOW CLUB**

‘That the portion of ground adjacent to Mahon Community Centre which is owned by Cork City Council is given to the Rainbow Club for a five year period to allow them extend their critical services and help alleviate their substantial waiting list.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Forde 20/278)

**South East Local Area Committee – 29/09/20**

33. **SUPPORT CORK FESTIVAL**

‘Given the cancellation of the October Jazz Festival, that Cork City Council initiates moves to have a Support Cork (Cork Recovers) festival instead to support business in the city and provide a welcome social outlet for people.’

(Proposer: Cllr. M. Finn 20/280)

**Community, Culture & Placemaking Strategic Policy Committee – 21/09/20**

34. **ASSESS FOOTPATH FROM MODEL VILLAGE, TOWER TO THE HUNTSMAN BAR JUNCTION**

‘The Cork City Council would assess the footpath on the road from Model Village, Tower to the Huntmans Bar junction with a view to extending the footpath up to the Huntmans junction as this road is a busy and dangerous road.’

(Proposer: Cllr. J. Sheehan 20/283)

**North West Local Area Committee – 28/09/20**

35. **INTRODUCE BYE LAWS TO BAN INFLATABLE CRAFT**

‘In light of the recent rescue by fisherman Gus O'Donovan and crew member Mathew Byrne of two men on an inflatable craft in Crosshaven, I want to bring to the attention of the Council the dangers of such craft on our shores. This is just one of several water related recent incidents that could have resulted in tragedy. In an article written for The Echo on August 5<sup>th</sup> of this year, Tom MacSweeney honours the role of Cork people in our maritime industry, and highlights the dangers of these inflatable craft. As mentioned in the article, I welcome the comment by chief executive of Water Safety Ireland, John Leech, in supporting a ban on inflatable craft, in order to prevent a tragic outcome in our waters. Referring to “supermarket inflatables”, Hugh Mockler, Deputy, Launch Authority at Crosshaven RNLI, where Gus has been a crew member, described these craft as “downright dangerous”. I therefore call on Cork City Council to introduce the necessary bye laws to ban the use of inflatable craft on our shores and beaches.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Tynan 20/284)

**Environment, Water & Amenity Strategic Policy Committee – 21/09/20**

36. **PEDESTRIAN LIGHTS AT JUNCTION OF OLD YOUGHAL ROAD AND BANDUFF ROAD**

‘I wish to bring to the attention of the Council, the dangers posed by traffic to the students of Scoil Cara in Banduff. The students of this school frequently cross Old Youghal Road, which is hazardous due to heavy traffic. This section of road from Tinker's Cross to Lotamore is very dangerous to pedestrians due to a lack of a pedestrian crossing. I therefore call on the Council for the urgent provision of pedestrian lights at the junction of Old Youghal Road and Banduff Road in order to

facilitate the safe crossing for the pupils of Scoil Cara and residents of the area. As this is the second motion presented to the Council regarding this issue, I appeal for the Council to appreciate the urgency of this matter.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Tynan 20/286)

**North East Local Area Committee – 28/09/20**

37. **POSTHUMOUS FREEDOM OF THE CITY TO TOMÁS MACCURTAIN AND TERENCE MACSWINEY**

‘That the ArdMhéara of Cork and members of Cork City Council do posthumously bestow the Freedom of the City on the late Tomás MacCurtain and Terence MacSwiney in this, the centenary of 1920 the year of their deaths. This honour would be bestowed upon them for their promotion of the Irish language and culture and the fact that they sacrificed their lives in the struggle for an independent Irish Republic. Given that no commemorations or celebrations could take place in 2020 due to the Covid19 pandemic, the Freedom of the City could be a fitting tribute to honour these two men.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. Collins 20/287)

**Centenary Commemoration 2019-2023 Steering Committee – 15/09/20**

38. **PLANS FOR MANGALA WALK, DOUGLAS**

‘To get a report for the South East Local Electoral area of any future plans for the extension of the Mangala Walk in Douglas.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. McCarthy 20/288)

**South East Local Area Committee – 29/09/20**

39. **REVAMP PARLIAMENT BRIDGE**

‘That the historic Parliament bridge be in the mix as the next City bridge to be revamped; its stonework on its balustrades are in poor shape and the bridge's lighting is broken.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. McCarthy 20/289)

**South Central Local Area Committee – 28/09/20**

40. **REPLACE LAMP STANDARDS AT THOMOND SQUARE**

‘That lamp standards at Thomond Square be replaced, and discussions be held with the local residents group and how space can best be organised there.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Boyle 20/292)

**South Central Local Area Committee – 28/09/20**

41. **ENHANCE EFFECTIVENESS OF CORE WORKING GROUP**

‘That the effectiveness of the CORE group working on city centre strategy be enhanced by including resident representatives from, for example, the Middle Parish Community Association.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Boyle 20/293)

**Strategic, Economic Development & Planning Strategic Policy Committee  
19/10/20**

42. **MEASURES TO AVOID FLOODING ON THE DOUGLAS ROAD**

‘That measures to avoid reoccurrence of recent sever street flooding on the Douglas Road (between Cross Douglas Road and St. Finbarr's Hospital) be identified and implemented.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Boyle 20/294)

**South Central Local Area Committee – 28/09/20**

43. **REVIEW OF SERVICES AT TORY TOP PARK, BALLYPHEHANE**

‘That this Council institute a review of services, security and use of space at Tory Top Park, Ballyphehane.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Boyle 20/295)

**South Central Local Area Committee – 28/09/20**

44. **FUNDS FOR GRAVES AT KILCULLY CEMETERY**

‘That Cork City Council engage with the Kilcully Action Group to determine if the Council can assist the group with a shortfall in funds to cover the vandalism to family graves at Kilcully Cemetery.’

(Proposers: Cllr. M. Nugent, Cllr. K. Collins 20/296)

**North West Local Area Committee – 28/09/20**



45. **PUBLIC LIGHTING ON THE ROAD FROM BLARNEY TO KILLARD VILLAGE**

‘That Cork City Council will ensure the entire road from Blarney to Killard Village is covered with public lighting in the interests of public health and safety.’

(Proposers: Cllr. M. Nugent, Cllr. K. Collins 20/297)

**North West Local Area Committee – 28/09/20**

46. **FOOTPATHS AT FR ROGERS PARK, GARVEYS BRIDGE**

‘That Cork City Council will follow up on assessments to footpaths at Fr. Rogers Park, Garveys Bridge and carry out the remedial works as required.’

(Proposer: Cllr. M. Nugent 20/298)

**North West Local Area Committee – 28/09/20**

47. **BICYCLE PARKING IN CORK CITY CAR PARKS**

‘That Cork City Council will provide infrastructure for bicycle parking in all car parks owned by Cork City Council.’

(Proposer: Cllr. L. Bogue 20/300)

**Roads & Transportation Strategic Policy Committee – 19/10/20**

48. **EXTEND OPENING HOURS IN CORK CITY LIBRARY**

‘That Cork City Council investigate extending opening hours of public spaces such as Cork City library for the use of students as study spaces should the need arise due to social distancing measures in third level institutes in Cork City.’

(Proposer: Cllr. L. Bogue 20/301)

**Community, Culture & Placemaking Strategic Policy Committee – 21/09/20**

49. **WATER FOUNTAINS IN PUBLIC SPACES**

‘That Cork City Council resolve as a policy that all public spaces newly constructed or substantially upgraded have water fountains included in their design.’

(Proposer: Cllr. L. Bogue 20/302)

**Environment, Water & Amenity Strategic Policy Committee – 21/09/20**

50. **FLAG POLE AND TRICOLOUR AT THE ENTRANCE TO THE CITY FROM BLACKPOOL**

‘That Cork City Council would erect a monumental flag pole and tricolour to match at the entrance to the city from the Blackpool side in recognition of the centenary of the deaths of ArdMhéara Tomás MacCurtain and Terence MacSwiney.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. Collins 20/303)

**Centenary Commemoration 2019-2023 Steering Committee – 15/09/20**

51. **GREEN URBAN NETWORK IN THE CITY**

‘That Cork City Council will develop ‘green corridors’ of linear natural infrastructure, such as trees and plants, that link up other green and open spaces to form a green urban network in the city.’

(Proposer: Cllr. O. Moran 20/304)

**Environment, Water & Amenity Strategic Policy Committee – 21/09/20**

52. **AFFIX NOTICES TO TREES INFORMING RESIDENTS OF WORKS**

‘That Cork City Council will affix notices to trees identified to be felled or cut, informing residents of the works to be conducted and allowing a period for residents to make observations.’

(Proposer: Cllr. O. Moran 20/305)

**Environment, Water & Amenity Strategic Policy Committee – 21/09/20**

53. **GUIDELINES FOR KEEPING HORSES IN THE CITY**

‘That Cork City Council will publish guidelines and practical information on the control and keeping of horses in the city for use by residents and stakeholders.’

(Proposer: Cllr. O. Moran 20/306)

**Environment, Water & Amenity Strategic Policy Committee – 21/09/20**

54. **INFORMATION FOR RESIDENTS ON THE CONTROL OF VERMIN**

‘That Cork City Council will publish information for city residents on control of vermin, including advice for control of waste and property, the rights of residents and services available.’

(Proposer: Cllr. O. Moran 20/307)

**Environment, Water & Amenity Strategic Policy Committee – 21/09/20**

## **APPENDIX 2**

### **MOTIONS**

An Chomhairle to note the referral to the relevant Committee of the following motions, due notice of which has been given:-

1. **REPLACE STREET LIGHTS AT GLENHEIGHTS PARK, BALLYVOLANE**

‘Could I ask Cork City Council replace the existing street lights with new LED lights within Glenheights Park, Ballyvolane, specifically around house numbers 60 to 86 and pole numbers 24, 26, 28, 44 and 43. Elderly residents live in this area and a bus stop is situated here. Elderly residents also find it difficult to negotiate the steps leading to their homes during dark hours because the existing lights are not illuminating enough light.’

(Proposer: Cllr. G. Keohane 19/459)

**North East Local Area Committee – 27/10/20**

2. **INSTALL SPEED RAMP AT GLENTHORN DRIVE, DUBLIN HILL**

‘Could I ask Cork City Council to install one speed ramp under health and safety concerns outside house number 65 Glenthorn Drive, Dublin Hill. Vehicles are traveling too fast through this route and on numerous occasions residents garden walls have been knocked.’

(Proposer: Cllr. G. Keohane 19/460)

**North East Local Area Committee – 27/10/20**

3. **UNBLOCK GULLIES IN GLANMIRE**

‘Could I ask Cork City Council to unblock the gullies from Buck Leary Cross, Glanmire towards Tim Crowley engineering, these gullies are not receiving rain water and rain water is lodging at the foot of the hill causing flooding and traffic congestion.’

(Proposer: Cllr. G. Keohane 19/461)

**North East Local Area Committee – 27/10/20**

4. **FOOTPATH REPAIR IN RIVERSTOWN, GLANMIRE**

‘Could I ask Cork City Council to carry out a footpath repair programme where necessary within the Brookville housing estate Riverstown Glanmire. Some footpaths were repaired while this area was in County Council but more need repairing under health and safety concerns.’

(Proposer: Cllr. G. Keohane 19/462)

**North East Local Area Committee – 27/10/20**

5. **SIGNAGE AT THE GROVES, BLARNEY**

‘That a Children at Play and a Slow Down sign be installed at the entrance to the Groves, Blarney, Co. Cork.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. O’Flynn 20/056)

**North West Local Area Committee – 27/10/20**

6. **MOBILE HUB FOR BOHERBUE CLOSE AND SILVERHEIGHTS**

‘That a mobile hub/drop in point for Boherbue Close and Silverheights.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. O’Flynn 20/057)

**North East Local Area Committee – 27/10/20**

7. **INSTALL MIRROR OUTSIDE FATHER ROGERS PARK**

‘That a mirror be installed outside Father Rogers Park to help with visibility for residents.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. O’Flynn 20/060)

**North West Local Area Committee – 27/10/20**

8. **INSTALL A RAMP AT FAIRHILL DRIVE**

‘That Cork City Council install a ramp outside 84-85 Fairhill Drive, Cork.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. O’Flynn 20/086)

**North West Local Area Committee – 27/10/20**

9. **HOUSING SWAP SCHEME**

‘That councillors receive an update on the Housing Swap Scheme that has been in operation in Cork City Council.

How many people applied to sign up to the scheme?’

How many were successful in signing up?  
How many received a transfer?  
What are the learnings from it?  
Any other relevant information.'

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Moloney 20/207)

**Housing Strategic Policy Committee – 19/10/20**

10. **INSTALL DOG FOULING BINS ACROSS THE CITY**

'That Cork City Council would put in place a budget to install dog fouling bins and signs across the city, possibly in conjunction with tidy towns, residents associations and the like.'

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Moloney 20/209)

**Environment, Water & Amenity Strategic Policy Committee – 16/11/20**

11. **LOUGH ROVERS GAA CLUB**

'That City Council in consultation with Lough Rovers GAA club would consider erecting new entrance gates that bit closer to the roadway to prevent vehicles using this area as a hideaway while dumping their refuse and other materials regularly at both sides of this entrance.'

(Proposer: Cllr. H. Cremin 20/214)

**South West Local Area Committee – 27/10/20**

12. **DISK PARKING THROUGHOUT ZONE Z**

'That the hours for disc parking requirements throughout Zone Z be extended to 20.30hrs, that the area of Zone Z itself be extended to include neighbouring roads and parks and that parking permits for Zone Z be limited to two per household.'

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Moloney 20/216)

**Roads & Transportation Strategic Policy Committee – 19/10/20**

13. **REDUCE SPEED LIMIT ON HARBOUR VIEW ROAD, KILMORE ROAD AND FAIRFIELD AVENUE**

'That Cork City Council reduce the speed limits on Harbour View Road, Kilmore Road and Fairfield Avenue.'

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Fitzgerald 20/258)

**North West Local Area Committee – 27/10/20**

14. **PARKING AT HOLLYVILLE ESTATE, HOLLYHILL**

‘That Cork City Council provide parking through green areas to parking at Hollyville Estate, Hollyhill.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Fitzgerald 20/262)

**North West Local Area Committee – 27/10/20**

15. **REFURBISH, PAINT AND UPGRADE SHANDON BRIDGE**

‘That Cork City Council refurbish, paint and upgrade Shandon Bridge.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Fitzgerald 20/266)

**North West Local Area Committee – 27/10/20**

16. **INCLUDE BARRETTS TERRACE IN THE WEED CONTROL PROGRAMME**

‘That Cork City Council include Barretts Terrace in the weed control programme.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Fitzgerald 20/267)

**North West Local Area Committee – 27/10/20**

17. **INCLUDE SANDOWN CREST IN THE ROAD RESURFACING PROGRAMME**

‘That Sandown Crest in Togher would be included in the next footpath/roads resurfacing programme as there are some serious issues with pothole’s and broken pathways in this estate.’

(Proposer: Cllr. H. Cremin 20/269)

**South West Local Area Committee – 27/10/20**

18. **FOOTPATH OUTSIDE THE FRIARS WALK TAVERN**

‘That Cork City Council immediately reinstate the footpath outside this premises. It is in an extremely dangerous condition on a busy thoroughfare.’

(Proposer: Cllr. S. Martin 20/274)

**South Central Local Area Committee – 27/10/20**

19. **CLEAN UP SCULPTURE AT WILTON ROUNDABOUT**

‘That City Council would clean up the sculpture on the roundabout at Wilton as it is badly in need of sanding down the rust and a new coat of paint.’

(Proposer: Cllr. H. Cremin 20/275)

**South West Local Area Committee – 27/10/20**

20. **TRAFFIC CALMING MEASURES AT CHURCH AVENUE, ROMAN STREET**

‘That Cork City Council implement traffic calming measures at Church Avenue, Roman St. Council will also assess if there is adequate disabled parking in the wider area from Roman St. to the North Cathedral.’

(Proposer: Cllr. M. Nugent 20/299)

**North West Local Area Committee – 27/10/20**

21. **ANTISOCIAL BEHAVIOUR AT BLACKPOOL PLAZA**

‘That the JPC request that the Gardaí address the anti social behaviour and drinking that occurs on and around the Blackpool Plaza in Blackpool Village. These gatherings are creating issues for the residents and businesses in the area.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Boylan 20/308)

**Joint Policing Committee**

22. **INCLUDE DONNYBROOK COTTAGES IN THE ROAD RESURFACING PROGRAMME**

‘I am requesting that Donnybrook Cottages is placed on the road resurfacing list as a matter of urgency as the surfaces are severely patched over the last number of years and there are a number of elderly residents occupying these properties.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Forde 20/310)

**South East Local Area Committee – 28/10/20**

23. **30KM LIMIT NEAR FITZGERALDS PARK**

‘That a 30km limit be considered for roadways in the vicinity of Fitzgeralds Park (Mardyke Walk, roadway from Western Road to Wellington Bridge etc) given the increased pedestrian and cycling usage in the area.’

(Proposer: Cllr. M. Finn 20/311)

**South Central Local Area Committee – 27/10/20**

24. **RENAME ROAD FROM WESTERN ROAD TO WELLINGTON BRIDGE**

‘That the stretch of road from Western Road to Wellington Bridge be named Wallaces Way after the famed sisters Sheila and Nora who played pivotal roles during the War of Independence.’

(Proposer: Cllr. M. Finn 20/312)

**Centenary Commemoration 2019-2023 Steering Committee**

25. **INCLUDE HAZEL ROAD, TOGHER IN THE RESURFACING PROGRAMME 2021**

‘That Hazel Road, Togher be included in the resurfacing programme for 2021.’

(Proposer: Cllr. H. Cremin 20/313)

**South West Local Area Committee - 27/10/20**

26. **SPEED RESTRICTIONS AT CROSS DOUGLAS ROAD**

‘That the following speed restricting and safety measures are considered for Cross Douglas Road to bring in line with other areas locally;

1. Traffic calming speed bumps along the road.
2. Reducing the speed limit to create a 30km zone.’

(Proposer: Cllr. M. Finn 20/314)

**South Central Local Area Committee – 27/10/20**

27. **PLAN FOR GUS HEALY SWIMMING POOL**

‘That Cork City Council would begin the process of developing a master plan for the Gus Healy Swimming pool (Douglas/Ballinlough). The current facility offers an extremely poor service to the public, the many clubs and local schools that use the facility. 15 years ago a motion to Council to relocate the facility and upgrade the complex in the process was defeated by Council. One of the primary reasons for relocation was road access as the vast majority of people were car users. I believe that times have changed. The mix of generations now living in the wider area of Ballinlough/Blackrock/Douglas has changed. Far more younger families now live in the area, more and more people in their 30s, 40s, 50s,60s and 70s are now actively involved in fitness. The site offers a great opportunity to provide the people of the south east area a complex that other districts of the city enjoy.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Cahill 20/315)

**South East Local Area Committee – 28/10/20**



28. **TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT PLAN FOR DONNYBROOK HILL**

‘That Cork City Council would as soon as is possible address the dangerous situation that the people who traverse Donnybrook Hill (Sless Carpet section) either by car/bicycle or on foot every day. The stretch of road between the Donnybrook hill/ Grange road and the Donnybrook/Scart Hill junction needs a detailed traffic/mobility management plan and subsequently a new road design which we as a Council can then apply to central government for. The speed camera is in an inadequate location and needs to be moved immediately to where it will actually work as it is intended to.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Cahill 20/316)

**South East Local Area Committee – 28/10/20**

29. **LIGHTING AT THE MARINA**

‘That Cork City Council would light the Marina between 5p.m. and 9p.m. Very successful temporary lighting was provided during the Ed Sheeran weekend. It shows that it can be done. A costing should be sought as a matter of urgency as the winter nights are getting longer and the marina is unsafe to walk in darkness. Covid has severely impacted everyone’s lives. Exercise is hugely important and while the long-term plan for the Marina is to include public lighting it needs to happen now. The Marina links many roads which will be utilised by the public if given the chance.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Cahill 20/317)

**South East Local Area Committee – 28/10/20**

30. **TAKE IN CHARGE ARDFIELD ESTATE, GRANGE**

‘That Ardfield Estate, Grange is taken in charge by Cork City Council so that issues unresolved from period under County Council remit can start to be addressed.’

(Proposer: Cllr. M. Finn 20/319)

**South Central Local Area Committee – 27/10/20**

31. **EXPAND INCREMENTAL TENANT PURCHASE SCHEME**

‘That Cork City Council expand the Incremental Tenant Purchase Scheme so as to enable tenants in Council owned apartments and 4 bedroom houses to purchase their homes from the Council.’

(Proposer: S. O’Callaghan 20/321)

**Housing Strategic Policy Committee – 19/10/20**

32. **PROVIDE AREA OFFICES WITH EXTRA FUNDING**

‘That Cork City Council provide the Douglas Area Office and the other Area Offices in the new parts of the City with extra funding and resources so as to enable them to employ more staff and deliver more services to the new areas of the City.’

(Proposer: Cllr. S. O’Callaghan 20/322)

**Finance & Estimates Committee – 07/12/20**

33. **INSTALL SOLAR POWERED SIGNS ON GRANGE ROAD**

‘That Cork City Council install a number of solar powered speed warning signs on the Grange Road.’

(Proposer: Cllr. S. O’Callaghan 20/324)

**South Central Local Area Committee – 27/10/20**

34. **TAKE IN CHARGE ARDFIELD ESTATE, GRANGE**

‘I ask Cork City Council to consider the taking in charge and to begin the process of taking in charge Ardfield Estate, Grange.’

(Proposer: Cllr. P. Dineen 20/325)

**South Central Local Area Committee – 27/10/20**

35. **CONSULTATION WITH COUNCILLORS FOR STRATEGIC HOUSING DEVELOPMENTS**

‘That Cork City Council would consult with Councillors, especially ward Councillors, during the consultation/observation period for Strategic Housing Developments so that this can better inform the planning process.’

(Proposer: Cllr. J. Sheehan 20/327)

**Strategic, Economic Development, Enterprise & Planning Strategic Policy Committee – 19/10/20**

36. **ROAD SAFETY MEASURES AT JUNCTION OF BALLINLOUGH ROAD AND BELLAIR ESTATE**

‘That road safety measures be again looked at the junction of Ballinlough Road and Bellair Estate. The corner of Old Lady of Lourdes National School is a blind corner and has many people crossing this dangerous stretch of road every day.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. McCarthy 20/328)

**South East Local Area Committee – 28/10/20**

37. **ARCHWAY ON KYRL'S QUAY**

'That arrangements be made that the 1779 archway behind Supermacs on Kyrl's Quay be abstracted and placed in a more prominent position nearby to reflect its stature, history and design.'

(Proposer: Cllr. K. McCarthy 20/329)

**South Central Local Area Committee – 27/10/20**

38. **RAMP AT CHURCHYARD LANE**

'To get a progress report at the South East Local Area Committee on progress in installing ramp on Churchyard Lane as agreed by Councillors some time ago.'

(Proposer: Cllr. K. McCarthy 20/330)

**South East Local Area Committee – 28/10/20**

39. **WALK 21 INTERNATIONAL CHARTER FOR WALKING**

'That Cork City Council consider signing up to the Walk 21 International Charter for Walking.'

(Proposer: Cllr. K. McCarthy 20/331)

**Community, Culture & Placemaking Strategic Policy Committee – 16/11/20**

40. **ZERO TOLERANCE TO PARKING ON PUBLIC FOOTPATHS**

'That this Council adopt a zero tolerance approach to the parking of any motor vehicle on public footpaths, recognising the physical damage caused by such parking, resulting in an unacceptable cost of repairing being met; with the general public being unfairly restricted in using footpaths that are being illegally blocked in this way. This Council further resolves to categorise the parking on footpaths as an anti social activity.'

(Proposers: Cllr. D. Boyle, Cllr. C. Finn 20/333)

**Roads & Transportation Strategic Policy Committee – 19/10/20**

41. **EU GREEN NEW DEAL**

‘That this Council welcome Cork becoming one of the first twenty five cities to have signed the Mannheim declaration committing to an EU Green New Deal, outlining what measures can be taken through local initiatives to meet this goal.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Boyle 20/334)

**Environment, Water & Amenity Strategic Policy Committee – 16/11/20**

42. **DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR THE LOUGH**

‘That a Development Plan be put in place assessing the future management of The Lough as an amenity.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Boyle 20/335)

**South Central Local Area Committee – 27/10/20**

43. **DISCOURAGE CULVERTING OF WATERWAYS**

‘That as a matter of policy this Council discourage the culverting of waterways in its jurisdiction, recognising that such works have been ecologically damaging and counterproductive as a response to flooding.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Boyle 20/336)

**Roads & Transportation Strategic Policy Committee – 19/10/20**

44. **STUDENT ACCOMMODATION ON BANDON ROAD**

‘That Cork City Council would outline steps to be taken to engage with stakeholders in light of the approval by An Bord Planeala of 554 bed spaces for students on Bandon Road. That they would also be mindful of the proposed development of social housing at Denroche’s Cross with the installation of much needed pedestrian crossings, footpath renewal and public realm improvements.’

(Proposer: Cllr. C. Finn 20/337)

**South Central Local Area Committee – 27/10/20**

45. **CYCLE PROTECTION MEASURES**

‘That the CE would report on the cycle protection measure implementation recently tendered for in the city, to include the City to CUH and the N22 to the R618 routes, though not exclusively.’

(Proposer: Cllr. C. Finn 20/338)

**Roads & Transportation Strategic Policy Committee – 19/10/20**

46. **ROAD SAFETY IN BLACKPOOL**

‘That Cork City Council will report on options to increase the visibility of pedestrians at Red Forge Road, crossing from the pedestrian steps to Cork City Library in Blackpool; including the feasibility of a raised table to improve the visibility of pedestrians and to slow the speed of motor vehicles, as well as other measures.’

(Proposer: Cllr. O. Moran 20/339)

**North East Local Area Committee – 27/10/20**

47. **CONNECTIVITY IMPROVEMENTS FOR WORKERS**

‘That Cork City Council will report on connectivity improvements for workers between Glanmire and Ringaskiddy, including the anticipated overall journey times, proposed through BusConnects under CMATS; and the feasibility of a direct public transport route for workers between Glanmire and Ringaskiddy in the overall provision of public transport in CMATS.’

(Proposer: Cllr. O. Moran 20/340)

**Roads & Transportation Strategic Policy Committee – 19/10/20**

48. **KILCULLY AS A BIODIVERSITY AMENITY AREA**

‘That Cork City Council will support the development of Murphy’s Rock in Kilcully as a biodiversity amenity area, including the installation of better sign posting of access by rights of way; and report on options for appropriate designations for the area that may be adopted by Council in the forthcoming city development plan.’

(Proposer: Cllr. O. Moran 20/341)

**North East Local Area Committee – 27/10/20**

49. **ZERO CARBON ECONOMY**

‘That Cork City Council believes a just transition, ensuring no workers or communities are left behind as we transition to a zero-carbon economy, is an essential element of successful climate action.’

(Proposers: Cllr. O. Moran, Cllr. C. Finn, Cllr. L. Bogue 20/342)

**Climate Action Committee**

50. **TAKE IN CHARGE MEADOWS ESTATE, HOLLYHILL/  
KNOCKNACULLEN**

‘That Cork City Council report on the process of addressing the remaining issues so as to allow the taking in charge of the Meadows Est, Hollyhill/Knocknacullen. In the interim Council will survey the ever growing estate for further traffic calming measures.’

(Proposers: Cllr. M. Nugent, Cllr. K. Collins 20/344)

**North West Local Area Committee – 27/10/20**

51. **LIOS CARA ESTATE, KILLEENS**

‘That Cork City Council will report on the status of Lios Cara Est, Killeens in terms of if there is a bond in place to deal with remaining issues, the process of taking in charge and if the adjacent new housing development will include traffic calming for the wider area.’

(Proposers: Cllr. M. Nugent, Cllr. K. Collins 20/345)

**North West Local Area Committee – 27/10/20**

52. **VACANT BUILDINGS ON GRAND PARADE**

‘That Cork City Council would report on the status of vacant buildings on the Grand Parade including the former hotel to determine if there is potential for redevelopment in a key area of the City Centre.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. Collins 20/347)

**South Central Local Area Committee – 27/10/20**

53. **INSPECT MANHOLE AND DRAINS AT GLENSIDE**

‘That this Council inspect the manhole, drains and road outside number 48 Glenside with a view to permanently fixing the problem here. There has been patching works done here previously which never seem to last the course.’

(Proposer: Cllr. F. Kerins 20/348)

**South East Local Area Committee – 28/10/20**

54. **EXTENSION OF PUBLIC PARK OPENING HOURS DURING WINTER MONTHS**

‘That Cork City Council extend the opening hours of Council owned parks during the winter months.’

(Proposer: Cllr. J. Maher 20/350)

**Environment, Water & Amenity Strategic Policy Committee – 16/11/20**

55. **TAKE IN CHARGE ARD NA GREINE ESTATE, BANDUFF**

‘That Cork City Council take in charge Ard Na Greine Estate, Banduff.’

(Proposer: Cllr. J. Maher 20/351)

**North East Local Area Committee – 27/10/20**

56. **FOX AND HOUNDS JUNCTION, BALLYVOLANE**

‘That Cork City Council look at improvements to the Fox and Hounds junction in Ballyvolane, currently the crossing is unsafe and is not accessible for all users.’

(Proposer: Cllr. J. Maher 20/352)

**North East Local Area Committee – 27/10/20**

57. **DOG FOULING SIGNS AT GLENHEIGHTS ROAD, BALLYVOLANE**

‘That Cork City Council install "No Dog fouling signs" in the field adjacent to Glenheights Road in Ballyvolane.’

(Proposer: Cllr. J. Maher 20/353)

**North East Local Area Committee – 27/10/20**